Copyright Warning & Restrictions

The copyright law of the United States (Title 17, United States Code) governs the making of photocopies or other reproductions of copyrighted material.

Under certain conditions specified in the law, libraries and archives are authorized to furnish a photocopy or other reproduction. One of these specified conditions is that the photocopy or reproduction is not to be "used for any purpose other than private study, scholarship, or research." If a, user makes a request for, or later uses, a photocopy or reproduction for purposes in excess of "fair use" that user may be liable for copyright infringement,

This institution reserves the right to refuse to accept a copying order if, in its judgment, fulfillment of the order would involve violation of copyright law.

Please Note: The author retains the copyright while the New Jersey Institute of Technology reserves the right to distribute this thesis or dissertation

Printing note: If you do not wish to print this page, then select "Pages from: first page # to: last page #" on the print dialog screen



The Van Houten library has removed some of the personal information and all signatures from the approval page and biographical sketches of theses and dissertations in order to protect the identity of NJIT graduates and faculty.

A STUDY OF EMULSION VISCOSITIES

FREDERICK R. CUMMINGS

A THESIS

PRESENTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF

THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE

OF

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN CHEMICAL ENGINEERING

AT

NEWARK COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

This thesis is to be used only with due regard to the rights of the author. Bibliographical references may be noted, but passages must not be copied without permission of the College and without credit being given in subsequent written or published work.

Newark, New Jersey

APPROVAL OF THESIS

FOR

DEPARTMENT OF CHEMICAL ENGINEERING

NEWARK COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

BY

FACULTY COMMITTEE

APPROVED:



NEWARK, NEW JERSEY JUNE, 1965 The apparent viscosity of stable emulsions has been measured and evaluated. The systems studied consisted of various oil in water emulsions, utilizing a series of six n-paraffins from heptane to octadecane. The system was stabilized with a conventional emulsifying agent. The apparent viscosity of these emulsions was studied in relation to (a) the concentration of the disperse phase and, (b) the viscosity of the hydrocarbon used as the continuous phase.

It was established that the volume concentration of the disperse phase had considerable effect on the apparent viscosity of the emulsion. An increase in the concentration of the disperse phase resulted in an increase of the apparent viscosity.

It was also shown that the viscosity of the hydrocarbon comprising the continuous phase had considerable effect upon the apparent viscosity of the emulsion. The increase in apparent viscosity was still greater than the increase in the viscosity of the external phase. This shows that an interaction of effects exists between the concentration of the disperse phase and viscosity of the external phase.

An equation was developed which related apparent emulsion viscosity and concentration of the disperse phase with type and concentration of emulsifier as the correlating parameter.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Terminology	Page 1
Introduction	2
Definitions	3
Concentration of Internal Phase	5
Viscosity of the Internal Phase	10
Emulsifying Agent and the Film Precipitated at	11
the Interface	
Electroviscous Effect	16
Particle Size Distribution	18
Scope	20
Experimental Equipment and Materials	21
Particle Size Measurements	21
Materials	21
Glycerol Monooleate Properties	22
Viscosity Measurements	22
Viscometer Properties	22
Experimental Procedure	23
Working Procedure	28
Viscosity Calculation	29
Preliminary Work	30
Experimental Results	33
Discussion	38
Conclusion	50
Nomenclature	51
Bibliography	52
Appendix	56

LIST OF FIGURES

1.	Viscosity Ratio vs. Concentration of Disperse	6
	Phase (Einstein-Hatscheck Curves)	
2.	Viscosity Ratio vs. Concentration of Disperse	9
	Phase (Einstein, Hatscheck, Vand, and Mooney	
	Curves)	
3.	Double Leyer Theory Presentation	17
4.	Lantz-Zeitfuchs Type Reverse-Flow Viscometer	24
5.	Apparent Viscosity of the Emulsion vs. Disperse	
	Phase Concentration	34
6.	Apparent Viscosity of the Emulsion vs. Disperse	
	Phase Concentration	35
7.	Viscosity of the Continuous Phase vs. the	
	Apparent Viscosity of the Emulsion	36
8.	Viscosity of the Continuous Phase vs. the	
	Apparent Viscosity of the Emulsion	37
9.	Theoretical Emulsion Curves vs. Experimental	41
10.	Viscosity of Pure Hydrocarbons vs. the Number	
	of Carbon Atoms	42
11.	Crowding Factor vs. Disperse Phase Concentration	n 43
12.	Crowding Factor vs. the Reciprocal of the Dis-	
	perse Phase Concentration	44
13.	In $\mathcal{H}_{\mathcal{L}}$ vs. ϕ Compared with the New Equation and	
×	70 ' the Mooney Equation	48
14	In 14 vs. & Compared with the New Equation and	
· -	the Mooney Equation	49

Page

LIST OF TABLES

		Page
1.	Surface and Interfacial Tension	15
2.	Surfactant Application	23
3.	Effect of Oil Viscosity on Emulsions	31
4.	Effect of the Disperse Phase on the Apparent	31
	Viscosity of the Emulsion	
5.	Constants for New Equation	45
6.	Heptane - Effect of Disperse Phase Concentration	56
	on $\mathcal{F}_{\mathcal{E}}$	
7.	Decane - Effect of Disperse Phase Concentration	57
	on 3 _e	
8.	Dodecane - Effect of Disperse Phase Concentra-	57
	tion on $\mathcal{Y}_{\mathcal{E}}$	
9.	Tetradecane - Effect of Disperse Phase Concen-	58
	tration on $\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{\varepsilon}}$	
10.	Hexadecane - Effect of Disperse Phase Concentra-	58
	tion on β_{E}	
11.	Octadecane - Effect of Disperse Phase Concentra-	59
	tion on $\mathcal{P}_{\varepsilon}$	
12.	Hydrocarbon and Emulsion Data	60
13.	Emulsifier - Viscosity Data	61
Ц.	Hydrocarbon Viscosity Data	63
15.	Hydrocarbon Viscosity Data	63
16.	S Values	64
17.	S Values	64

Pare

TERMINOLOGY

Because of the wide variation of definitions, it is advisable to define a few terms which are employed in general usage in the remainder of this thesis.

- Internal Phase: The medium which is present in the form of small dispersed droplets (also referred to as the dispersed phase).
- <u>O/W</u>: Type of emulsion: oil in water; oil being the dispersed phase and the water being the continuous phase.
- <u>W/0</u>: Type of emulsion: oil in water; oil being the dispersed phase and water being the continuous phase.
- Emulsifier: Surfactants or surface active materials, or other agents which are added to an emulsion in order to increase its stability by interfacial action.
- <u>Continuous Phase</u>: Medium in which the internal phase is dispersed (also referred to as the external phase).

INTROLUCTION

The theory of emulsions, a classification of colloids, has grown in a rather haphazard fashion. At present the theory is a mixture of theories of physical properties of matter and structure of matter. Colloid chemistry has been longely an experimental science. The emulsion is partly an outgrowth of classified colloidal chemistry, and partly a development of the ancient arts involved in the production of emulsions. The formulation of exact theories has been hindered by the large number of variables, and the difficulty and complexity of accurate measurements of emulsions. As more knowledge of emulsions and more efficient methods of preparing them have become available, emulsions have found their way into almost every industry, e.g., paint, food, drugs, cosmetice, road, lubitcants, and cements.

The earliest emulsion observed was probably milk. An example of a natural application of an emulsion is the absorption of fats in the intestine and the subsequent transport to the living cells in the blood and lymph. Most emulsions today are formulated by man and are tailored for a specific use in the home or industry.

While an emulsion may readily be recognized, there is no universal definition of an emulsion. A wide variety of definitions or comments as to what is an emulsion has been set forth below:

- Emulsions are mechanical mixtures of liquids that are immiscible under ordinary conditions and which, in turn, may be separated into layers on standing, heating, freezing, by agitation or the addition of other chemicals. (1)
- 2. An emulsion is a system containing two liquid phases, one of which is dispersed as globules in the other. (2)
- 3. An emulsion is a very fine dispersion of one liquid in another with which it is immiscible. (3)
- 4. Emulsions are intimate mixtures of two immiscible liquids, one of them being dispersed in the other in the form of fine droplets. (4)
- 5. Emulsions are microscopically visible droplets of one liquid suspended in another. (5)
- 6. An emulsion is a two-phase liquid system consisting of fairly coarse dispersions of one liquid in another with which it is not miscible. (6)
- 7. An emulsion consists of a stable dispersion of one liquid in another liquid. (7)

Resistance to flow is perhaps one of the more important properties of an emulsion. Sherman (8a) has listed six of the more important factors which affect the viscosity of an emulsion.

1. Viscosity of the external phase

- 2. Volume concentration of the disperse phase.
- 3. Viscosity of the internal phase.
- 4. The nature of the emulsifying agent and the film precipitated at the interface.
- 5. The electroviscous offect.
- 6. The particle size and size distribution,

The theory of emulsions has fascinated many scien-

Indeed, the usual starting point for such studies is the Einstein equation:

$$\eta_{E} = \eta_{o}(1 + 2.5\phi)$$
 (1)

wherein

 $\mathcal{J}_{\mathcal{E}}$ = apparent viscosity of the emulsion; $\mathcal{J}_{\mathcal{E}}$ = viscosity of the continuous phase, & $\boldsymbol{\phi}$ = the fraction of the total volume which is the disperse phase,

The apparent viscosity as referred to in this work is the viscosity of an emulsion as measured with a "Lantz-Zeitfuchs" type reverse flow viscometer (described later).

In many emulsions, the emulsifying agent is dispersed or dissolved in the external oil phase and, therefore, γ_o is the viscosity of this oil-emulsifier solution rather than of the pure oil.

CONCENTRATION OF INTERNAL PHASE

Many workers in the field of emulsion viscosity have investigated this aspect: Guth, Gold, and Shimha (16); Oliver and Ward (17); Eilers (18); Sherman (19); Richardson (20); Simpson (21); Taylor (10). One of the first equations maining viscosities and the volume of the dispersed material of a two-phase mixture was the Einstein equation:

$$\mathcal{T}_{\mathcal{E}} = \mathcal{T}_{\circ} \left(1 + 2.5 \phi \right) \quad (1)$$

This equation is only applicable to emulsions having ϕ values of less than 0.05. Emulsions of this type exhibit Nowtonian behavior, emulsions containing larger amounts of disperse phase normally exhibit non-Newtonian flow properties. Another limitation is that it applies mainly to mixtures of a liquid with rigid spheres. The Einstein equation, therefore, is of limited utility. It can be seen from the equation (and Fig. 1) that Einstein postulated that the viscosity is a linear function of the concentration of the disperse phase, independent of the size of the dispersed particles and the distance between them.

Generally speaking, emulsions containing more than 50 percent volume disperse phase show considerable non-Newtonian behavior. For such systems, Hatscheck (9) has derived the well-known relationship:

$$\frac{7}{1 = \frac{7}{1 - (h \phi)^{\frac{1}{3}}}}{1 - (h \phi)^{\frac{1}{3}}}$$
(2)

 $\frac{1}{1 = 0}$

wherein

 γ_{ε} , apparent viscosity of the emulsion



 γ_o = viscosity of the continuous phase φ = volume concentration of the disperse phase

Hatscheck pointed out that this equation only applies to the linear portion of the shear-flow curves, i.e., at low concentrations of dispersed phase.

Carter (22) maintained that the viscosity of an emulsion is dependent on the viscosity of the internal phase and, to a lesser extent, on the particle size of the dispersed particles. She also stated that as viscosity of both the internal phase and its concentration increases, the resulting emulsion viscosity increases.

More recent approaches to the calculations of emulsion apparent viscosities have been reduced to the following power series:

$$\gamma_{E} = \gamma_{\bullet} \left(1 + 2.5\phi + c\phi^{2} + b\phi^{3} + \cdots \right)$$
 (3)

Guth, Gold, Shimha (16) calculated the value of "a" to be 14.1, but this only applies to ϕ values of less than 0.06. For high concentrations of disperse phase allowances were made to correct for the influence of "crowding" or close packing of the dispersed globules with increasing concentration. A crowding effect is evident in Monson's (23) work with California crude oils. In this work the viscosity ratio $\frac{\gamma_{e/2}}{\gamma_{o}}$ varied from 1.3 for emulsions with 10 percent volume disperse phase to 4.1 ratio for emul-

sions having disperse phases of 40 percent volume.

Mooney's (24) equation takes into account the "crowding" factor:

$$\eta_{c} = \eta_{o} e_{r} \left(\frac{2.5 \phi}{1 - S \phi} \right)$$
(4)

wherein S is the crowding factor which depends on the size distribution of spheres. For spheres of a uniform size, the estimated range of S given by Mooney is:

1.35 < S < 1.91

Another analysis that is applicable to high concentrations of disperse phase was proposed by Vand (25). Vand takes into account both the mutual hydrodynamic interaction between particles and their collisions. This equation for the apparent viscosity of a suspension is:

$$\gamma_{\epsilon} = \gamma_{ex} \left[k_{,}\phi - \frac{\alpha \left(k_{1} - k_{,} \right) \phi}{1 - \kappa \phi} \right]$$
 (5)
where, for spherical particles, the values of the constants

have been theoretically determined by Vend:

Einstein shape factor of single spheres	K _{1 =} 2.5
Shape factor of collision doublets	X ₂ = 3.175
Collision time constant	L = 3
Hydrodynemic interaction constant	B = 39/64 = 0.609

If ϕ is small, then this equation can be reduced to the Einstein equation (via series expansion of the exponential term).



XERO

The Einstein, Hatscheck, Vand, and Mooney equations are plotted in Figure 2. In order to illustrate the effect of collisions, two curves predicted by Vand are shown: one takes collisions into account ($4^{-2}4$), and the other neglects this effect (4^{-0}).

VISCOSITY OF THE INTERNAL PHASE

The effect of the viscosity of the internal phase was not included in early studies, neither the Einstein equation nor the Hatscheck equation take this factor into account. However, many investigators have included this in their results. Taylor (10) modified the Einstein equation to include

this as:
$$\mathcal{F}_{e} = \mathcal{F}_{o} \left[1 + 2.5 \phi \left(\frac{\gamma_{i} + 2/5 \gamma_{o}}{\gamma_{i} + \gamma_{o}} \right) \right]$$
 (c)

wherein γ_c viscosit, of the internal phase.

Leviton and Leighton (11) studied emulsions of milk fat and skim milk and further modified this equation to:

$$l_{n} \frac{\eta_{\epsilon}}{\eta_{0}} = 2.5 \left(\frac{\eta_{i} + \frac{2}{3} \eta_{0}}{\eta_{i} + \eta_{0}} \right) \left(\phi + \phi^{5/3} + \phi^{1/3} \right)$$
(7)

Oldroyd (12) arrived at a more complex equation. He calculated the elastic properties of a dilute emulsion of one incompressible viscous liquid in another liquid, arising from the interfacial tension existing between the two phases. The effect of slip at the interface which might be associated with the presence of an interfacial film of the third component (introduced as a stabilizer) was also

calculated.

Bond and Newton (13) proposed that spherical drops behave as rigid spheres provided that the radius of the droplet was less than a certain (undefined) critical value.

Tems (14) studied coulsions and calculated that while the viscosity of the internal phase was of no importance, the chemical nature of the internal phase was quite signifleant.

The aforementioned investigations used an oil in water (0/W) type emulsions. Sherman (15) was one of the few investigators who used water in oil (W/O) emulsions. He concluded that the viscosity of the internal phase was of little importance but that the chemical nature of the disperse phase could be of considerable significance.

FRECIPITATED AT THE INTERPACE

Emulsifiers are a broad class of compounds which alter the surface tension of liquids in which they are present. They also alter the interfacial tension between two immiscible liquids which is of importance in emulsion manufacture. As the interfacial tension approaches zero, emulsification is readily affected.

Commercially available emulsifying agents can be classi-

fied into five major groups with subdivisions. The classification given below is based on one developed by Schwartz and Perry (27). The agents are classified according to the hydrophilic group in the molecule.

I. AMIONIC

A. Carboxylic Acids

- 1. Carboxyl joined directly to the hydrophobic group.
- 2. Carboxyl joined through an intermediate linkage.
- B. Sulfuric Esters (Sulfates)
 - 1. Sulfate joined directly to hydrophobic group.
 - 2. Sulfate group joined through intermediate linkage.
- C. Alkene Sulfonic Acids
 - 1. Sulfonic group directly linked to hydrophobic group.
 - 2. Sulfonic group joined through intermediate linkage.
- D. Alkyl Aromatic Sulfonic Acids
 - 1. Hydrophobic group joined directly to sulfonated aromatic nucleus,
 - 2. Hydrophobic group joined to sulfonated aromatic nucleus through intermediate linkage.
- E. Miscellaneous Anionic Hydrophylic Groups
 - 1. Phosphates and phosphonic acids.
 - 2. Persulfates, thiosulfates, etc.
 - 3. Sulfonamids.
 - 4. Sulfamic acids, etc.

II. CATIONIC

A. Amine Salts (Primary, Secondary, and Tertiary)

1. Amino group joined directly to hydrophobic group.

- 2. Amino group joined through intermediate link.
- B. Quarternary Ammonium Compounds
 - 1. Mitrogen joined through an intermediate group.
 - 2. Nitrogen joined to hydrophilic group.
- C. Other Mitrogenous Bases
 - Nonquarternary bases (e.g., guanidine, thiuronium salts, etc.)
 - 2. Quarternary bases.
- D. Nonnitrogenous Bases
 - 1. Phosphonium compounds.
 - 2. Sulfonium compounds, etc.

III. NONIONIC

- A. Ether Linkage to Solubilizing Groups
- B. Ester Linkage
- C. Amide Linkage
- D. Miscellaneous Linkages
- E. Multiple Linkages

IV. AMPHOLYTIC

- A. Amino and Carboxy
 - 1. Nonquaternary
 - 2. Quaternary

- B. Amino and Sulfuric Ester
 - 1. Nonquaternary
 - 2. Quaternary
- C. Amino and Alkane Sulfonic Acid
- D. Amino and Aromatic Sulfonic Acid
- E. Miscellaneous Combination of Basic and Acidic Groups

V. WATER-INSOLUBLE EMULSIFYING AGENTS

- A. Ionic Hydrophilic Group
- B. Nonionic Hydrophilic Group

The effect of emulsifiers on the surface tension may better be seen in Table 1 set forth below. As may be seen in this table, pure water has a surface tension of 72.3 dynes/cm.² and an interfacial tension with "mineral oil" of 31.0 dynes/cm.². Addition of various emulsifiers at 1 percent by weight concentration alters the surface tension and interfacial tension significantly. The decrease in the interfacial tension enhances emulsification substantially. When two immiscible liquids are agitated so as to disperse one liquid in the other to form fine globules, the surface of each liquid becomes greatly extended, and a corresponding large quantity of free energy is produced at the interface. This potential energy is measured by the surface produced and the intensity of the interfacial tension acting against it. The potential energy of the surface

tends to reduce the surface area to a minimum. This contractile force draws the liquid into a number of spherical droplets and, at the same time, divides an intimate mixture of two immiscible liquids into two phases, separated by a minimum interface. Therefore, if an emulsifying agent reduces the interfacial tension between two immiscible liquids, it decreases the free surface enery of the emulsion and tends to produce a permanent or stable emulsion.

TABLE 1 (Reference 22)

SURFACE AND INTERFACIAL TENSION

COMPOUND (1% wt. aqueous solution)	SURFACE TENSION	INTERFACIAL TENSION* (mineral oil)
Sorbitan monolaurate (Span 20)	28	3.5
Sorbitan monostearate (Span 60)	46	11.0
Sorbitan moncoleate (Span 80)	30	2.5
Sorbitan monolaurate (Tween 20)	36	6.0
Sorbitan monostearate (Tween 60)) 43	9.0
Sorbitan monocleate (Tween 80)	41	10.0
Sodium oleate	27	
Water	72.3	31**

- * dynes/cm.²
- ** Measured by author for comparison purposes. This is typical for many hydraulic and turbine "interest oils".

ELECTROVISCOUS EFFECT

The electroviscous effect is an outgrowth of the Helmholtz (28) double layer theory. Helmholtz assumed that the charge on the particles of a lyophobic colloid was due to an unequal distribution of ions at the particle-water interface. He further pointed out that ions of one charge were closely bound to the particle, ions of the opposite charge would line up parallel to them thereby forming a double layer of charges. This situation is presented in Figure 3 as an idealized form for a spherical particle.

The Zeta Potential which is an outgrowth of the double layer theory is usually defined in the following way:

"Most colloidal particles have a negative charge and are surrounded by stationary positive charges, which in turn, are surrounded by a diffuse layer of negative charges. The Zeta Potential is the difference in the charge between the movable layer and that of the bulk suspending liquid." (29)

A recent presentation of this phenomenon is in an article by Schmit (29). However, in regard to emulsions stabilized with nonionic emulsifiers or water in oil emulsions, it is difficult to picture a surface charge arising by this mechanism. Alexander (30) proposes that it is possible to absorb ions from the aqueous phase. Equally possible is the existence of a charge arising from frictional contact between the droplets and the suspension medium, analogous to the frictional electricity generated when an

Figure 3 - Double Layer Theory Presentation

XERO

XERO COPY

XERO

amber rod is rubbed with a silk cloth. However, Schulman and Cockbain (31) reject the hypothesis that droplets in water in oil emulsions possess a charge.

PARTICLE SIZE DISTRIBUTION

Particle size is generally expressed as the diameter of the globules in the internal phase. If the size is not uniform, the particle size occurring most frequently is adopted as a designation of particle size of the emulsion. The values of the smallest and the largest particles are indicative of the range of particle size.

The particle size of an emulsion is largely dependent on the type and quantity of emulsifier, the amount of work applied in preparation of emulsion, and the addition order of ingredients. Most commercially available emulsions have a particle size of 0.5 to 2.5 microns. Fine uniform particle size in an emulsion generally indicates good stability. A change in particle size from small to large diameter during storage indicates a breakdown of the emulsion stability. Quantitatively, the particle size of an emulsion can be estimated from a colorimetric observation. (22)

PA	RTICL	E	SIZE	APPEARANCE
1	micre	n		Milky white emulsion
0.	1 to	1	micron	Blue white emulsion

0.05	to	0.1	micron	Grey	semi-transparent
				er	mu ts lon

0.05 micron and smaller Transparent emulsions

.

. '

SCOPE

This present work is a study of the theory of emulsions and, in particular, the factors affecting the apparent viscosity ($\mathcal{J}_{\mathcal{E}}$) of emulsions. This facet has not been investigated thoroughly by previous workers. The work that was carried out involved emulsions of cils or asphalts with water. In the present work, the hydrocarbons employed were pure n-paraffins.

The type system selected was water in oil (W/O) emulsion, sometimes referred to as an "invert" emulsion. These emulsions consisted of water, emulsifier (at two concentrations), and a pure hydrocarbon. The ratio of water to oil was varied and the resulting apparent viscosities of the emulsions were measured. The effect of hydrocarbon chain length of the external phase on the apparent viscosity of the emulsion was also determined.

EXPERIMENTAL EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS

Emulsions were prepared with a Fischer Scientific hand operated homogenizer (11-504-200) and a single surfactant. Each blend had the same amount of shear and in this manner uniform particle size was obtained. It was predetermined by experiment how much work was needed to produce stable emulsions with disperse particles 1-2 microns in diameter.

PARTICLE SIZE MEASUREMENTS

The particle size was measured with a Bausch & Lomb microscope equipped with a 10 X ocular and 98 X oil immersion lens. In order to stop Brownian movement a drop of the emulsion was dispersed in 100 mls. of a low viscosity mineral cil. The viscosities were measured with a Lantz-Zeitfuchs type reverse flow viscometer. The emulsions were non-transparent, and a straight flow type viscometer could not be utilized.

MATERIALS

Normal paraffins:

Heptanø Decane Dodecane Tetradecane

Henadocane

Octadecane

All paraffins were of 99 percent weight purity and were obtained from Philips Petroleum Company. The water comprising the disperse phase was distilled.

Clycerol mono-cleate was obtained from Emery Industries.

It had the following properties:

GLYCEROL MONOOLEATE PROPERTIES

Seponification Number, mg.KOH/g	152.2
Iodine Number	73.4
Specific Gravity, 60/60°F	0,9516
Total Acid Number, mg.KOH/g	2.0

VISCOSITY MEASUREMENT

The apparent viscosity of the crulsions were determined with a Lantz-Zeitfuchs type reverse flow viscometer conforming to the following characteristics:

VISCOMETER PROPERTIES

Capillary Diameter, mm	2.37
Capillary Length, mm	300
Siphon Diameter, mm	3,00
Bulb Volume, ml	5.0
Constant of Calibration	1.0

EXPERIMENTAL PROCEDURE

The present investigation is centered on pure hydrocarbons. The series of n-paraffins used contain only very small amounts of branched and are devoid of elefinic and aromatic components. Only one emulsifier was employed although emulsifiers are normally used in pairs to facilitate ease of emulsibility. The coupling action of a single smulsifier would be in one direction, i.e., the heads and tails of the compound are all aligned identically. After an examination of a number of emulsifiers and using the "Atlas H L B System", glycorol monocleate was selected. The usual relationship between H L B and end use of surfactants is as follows:

PABLE 2

SURFACIANT APPLICATION

<u>HIB</u>	APPLICATION
4-6	W/O emulsions
7-9	Wotting agents
8-13	0/W emulsions
13-1 5	Detergents
15-18	Solubilizors

In this work, the emulsifiers examined had H L B numbers from 4-6 because the resultant emulsions were to be

23 -



Figure 4 - Lantz-Zeitfuchs Type Reverse-Flow Viscometer (all Dimensions are in Millimeters)

water in oil type. The HLB number (22) can be calculated (if Atlas compounds are not used) by the following simple formula:

H L B = 20 (1 - S/A) (8)

 $S \leq$ seponification no. of the ester.

A T acid no. of the acid.

For the emulsifier chosen (glycerol monocleate) the calculated H L B is:

HLB(GMO) = 20($1 - \frac{152.2}{200}$) = 4.8

It might be well to mention that n-paraftins do not enulsify as readily as aromatic hydrocarbons or mixtures of petroleum oils. The H L B system serves as a guide, but in no way guarantees stable emulsions. Of several possibilities, glycerol mono-cleate appeared to be best.

Emulsification was effected by first preparing a coarse emulsion. This coarse emulsion was prepared by mixing the paraffin and emulsifier in a 100 ml, glass stoppered graduate cylinder. Water was added in increments of 3-5 mls, with shaking of the emulsion after each addition. This procedure was repeated until all the water had been added. The addition of water produces an unstable emulsion which may tend to revert to an $0/W_s$ cil in water type.

Once the coarse emulsion had been prepared, it was

necessary to convert it to a stable emulsion by use of a homogenizer. After each pass through the homogenizer, the particle size was checked with a microscope. It was determined that 4-5 passes gave reproducible emulsions, having the desired particle diameter. The final particle diameter was 1-2 microns. Equally as important as particle diameter was the fact that the apparent viscosity of these emulsions could be reproduced.

Proliminary work using a Waring Blendor produced emulsions having large particles which evidenced instability end proceeded to "break" before the viscosity values could be determined. An undesirable temperature rise was observed when the Waring Blendor was used. For a one minute mix, temperature rises of 5-10 degrees were observed depending upon the viscosity of the analsion. Miros of 3, 5, and 10 minutes duration were propared; these also exhibited poor stability and had droplot sizes which were large and nonuniform. Some of the materials investigated were quite volatile, and temperature raises enhanced evaporation during emulsifications. Because of these factors, a hand homogenizer was tested. In the hand operated homogenizer, no temperature rise was observed, stability of emulsions was obtained, and particle sizes were in the range of 1-2 microns in diameter. This homogenizer was used throughout the work.

Homogenization and viscosity determinations were performed at 25° C (77° F) with one exception, octadecane. This material is solid at this temperature, and therefore, was studied at 32.2° C (90° F).

MORELIG MODELLER

Emulsions were prepared by pipetting 60 mls. of hydrocerbon into a glass stoppered 100 ml. volumetric cylinder. The emulsifier, glycerol monocleate, was added (either 5 ml. or 10 ml.) to the hydrocarbon. This mixture is considered the continuous phase and the viscosity of this material. , in the equations.

Distilled water was added from a burette in 3-5 mls. portions; after each addition, the mixture was vigorously agitated. The resulting mixture, which was a coarse emulsion, was added to the hand homogenizer and "worked". After each pass, the particle size was checked with the Bausch & Lomb microscope. It was found that four or five passes were required to obtain emulsions with droplet sizes of one to two microns in diameter.

The apparent viscosity of the completed water in oil emulsion was determined with a Lantz-Zeitfuchs reverse flow viscometer (see Figure 4). The emulsion sample, after aging for one minute, was poured into the filling tube (1) until the sample overflowed into the trap. The temperature of the continuous phase and the water were adjusted to the proper viscosity temperature (77° or 90° F).

The sample flow was initiated by applying a elight vacuum at the vent (3). The vacuum was maintained until

- 28
the sample flowed over the siphon to a point opposite the timing mark (A) and thereafter allowed to flow under its own head around the bend in the capillary. (Measured in seconds, the time required for the miniscus to pass from the first timing mark to the second.)

CALCULATION

Kinematic viscosity, cs \equiv CT (9) C \equiv The calibration constant of the viscometer centistokes per second.

T = The efflux time in seconds.

PRELIMINARY WORK

An examination of provious work showed that a fuffinite relationship existed between the viscosity of the continucus phase and the apparent viscosity of the emilcion. T t further appeared that as the viscosity of the continuous phase increased so also did the apparent viscosity of the emulsion. New experiments were made to check these obser-The results may be seen in Table 3 and h set forth vetions. below. These tables show the viscosity of the continuous phase and the apparent viscosity of an emulsion prepared with these cils. The data in Table 3 wore obtained from a family of petroleum oile, all having a low viscosity index. and which were emulsified with a portable hand operated homogenizer. These emulsions contained 60 parts of continuous phase. LO parts of water, and 3 parts emulation (parts by volume). Table 1 is a summary of results obtained with one base oil and above how the concentration of the discerse phase affects the apparent viscosity of the emulsion,

The smulsion type (0/W or W/O) was determined by the dilution method. This method depends on the fact that an emulsion is readily dilutable by the liquid which constitutes the continuous phase. The emulsions prepared in this investigation were readily extended with the hydrocarbon phase, indicating that these emulsions were water in oil type (W/O).

THE EFFECT OF OIL	VISCOSITY ON EMULSIONS
(VISCOSITY OF THE OIL (Contistokes at 100°F)	VISCOSITY OF THE MULSION (Centistokes at 100°F)
5.2	19.5
23.3	92.8
93.7	541
184	1820
237	3170
343	7030

TAPLE 4

<u>11765</u>	INFERGE	<u>0</u> F		DI	SPERSED	PHASE	
OF THE							
A1	PACLETT	DM	<u>NAIC</u>	N	VISCOSI	<u>v</u>	

		VISC	Viscosity	
H ₂ C/011 Batio	vol. N20%	Base Of L	Dealelon	Matlo
1/10	9,1	23.3	29.2	1/1.2
2/10	16.7	23.3	37.5	1/1.6
3/10	23.1	23,3	50.0	1/2.1
10/15	40	23.3	92,8	1/3.8

These data show that there is a very definite relationship which is conlinear. It should be remembered, however, that these petroleum oils contain both aromatic and paraffinic type hydrocerbons. N-paraffins, branched chain, olefins and aromatic type hydrocarbons have different emulsification capabilities and different apparent viscosities of the emulsion. N-paraffinic type hydrocarbons were chosen for this work to avoid offects of materials with different emulsification properties.

EXPERIMENTAL RESULTS

Based on the results of preliminary experiments reported in Tables 3 and 4, it was decided to study:

- (1) The effect of concentration of the internal phase on the apparent emulsion viscosity.
- (2) The effect of the viscosity of the external phase on the apparent emulsion viscosity.

Results of the first part can be summarized in Figures 5 and 6. The effect of viscosity of the continuous phase can be seen in Figures 7 and 8.

The data obtained from these experiments are tabulated in the appendix, Tables 8 to 15. It can be seen from these data and Figures 5 to 8 that there is a definite relationship between:

- (1) The concentration of the internal phase, ϕ , and the apparent viscosity of the emulsion, γ_E .
- (2) The viscosity of the continuous phase, γ_o , and γ_E .



COPY

COPRO



(The hydrocarbon phase contains 60 mls. hydrocarbon and 10 mls. emulsifier)



COPY ORDO

(These emulsions contained 60 mls. hydrocarbon, 5 mls. emulsifier, and water)



(These emulsions contained 60 mls. hydrocarbon, 10 mls. emulsifier. and water.)

DISCUSSION

The preliminary work (data presented in Tables 3 and 4) shows that a definite relationship exists between the concentration of the disperse phase and the apparent viscosity of the emulsion. Similar results have been reported before, but these new data more clearly define the magnitude of the effects. However, the oils used in the preliminary work and those previously reported consisted of mixtures of compounds. The physico-chemical properties of such mixtures depend upon their composition. This complicating factor was avoided by using pure n-paraffins as the continuous phase. Pure compounds have consistent properties. The results using a series of n-paraffins are summarized in Tables 8-15 and in Figures 7 and 8 of the appendix. The trends are the same as for oil mixtures, that is:

- (a) As the concentration of the disperse phase increases, the apparent viscosity of the emulsion increases.
- (b) As the viscosity of the hydrocarbon comprising the external phase increases, the apparent viscosity of the emulsion increases.

The Einstein and Hatscheck curves agree well with experimental data up to a ϕ of 0.2. Beyond this value of the discrepancies become increasingly great. The Vand equation is applicable up to a ϕ of 0.3. The Mooney equa-

tion using crowding factors of 1.6 and 1.8 bracket the experimental data up to a ϕ of 0.4. Beyond this point large variations are evident. Therefore, it can be said that these equations apply only to a limited range of ϕ .

These equations have certain factors in common which have been examined in detail. The principle ones are the viscosity of the external phase and the concentration of the internal phase.

Considering first the viscosity of the external phase, it can be seen in Figure 10 how the viscosity of the pure paraffin increases with molecular weight. A study of Figures 7, 8, 9, and 10, shows that all these curves have a similar shape. The increase in the apparent viscosity for a given ϕ was approximately 5 times the change of the pure hydrocarbon viscosity. The similarity in the shape of the curves suggest that the viscosity of the external phase is part of the answer. The difference in the shapes of the curves show that the external phase viscosity is not the only cause of the apparent viscosity of the emulsion. Figures 7 and 8 show the increase of the apparent viscosity of the emulsion as the viscosity of the continuous phase increases.

In the Einstein Equation the relationship between γ_{ϵ} and ϕ has a linear form. The resulting curve does not agree with experimental data at high concentrations. In

the Hatscheck Equation ϕ is in a power form. The shape of this curve approaches the one obtained from experimental data, but the similarity is only in the shape. The Vand Equation which takes into account the shape factor, the collision factor (or time between collisions), and the hydrodynamic interaction constant is much better than either the Einstein or the Hatscheck Equations. However, this equation still shows rather poor correlation with experimental data. With the Mooney Equation, an exponental relationship with two constants is used. The curve of the Mooney Equation matches the experimental data better than the other equations. However, the factor for S is chosen as a constant depending on the particle size of the disperse This is apparently so for solids dispersed in a phase. liquid (10), but as can be seen in Tables 18 and 18A of the appendix, S varies with ϕ . This is shown on Figure 11 of the next page. The points in Figure 11 were obtained with different hydrocarbons as the external phase.





per Molecule

+



ΫŅ

XERO

43



 \mathbf{O}

Emulsions with 5 mls. G M O Emulsions with 10 mls. G M O Δ



This graph shows that S is a function of $1/\phi$ with the emulsifier concentration as a parameter. Evidently, and as should be expected, the amount of emulsifier is an important factor. The curves can be represented in the slope-intercept form:

$$S = \frac{m}{\phi} + b \qquad (10)$$

Where m is the slope and b is the intercept. The slopes and intercepts are found tabulated below in Table 16.

TABLE 5

	CONS	TANTS	FOR N	EN EQUI	ATION				
m	<u>b</u>	Conti	nuous	Phase	Compo	<u>osition</u>			
0.685	0.016	60 ml	s. hy	drocarl	bon -	5 m ls. C	f M	0	
0,795	0,010	60 ml	s. hy	drocarl	bon -	10 mls.	G	M	0

The slope-intercept form is substituted into the Mooney Equation starting with:

$$\ln 76/7_0 = \frac{2.5 \phi}{1 - 5 \phi}$$
 (4)

We get:

$$ln \frac{\gamma_e}{\gamma_o} = \frac{2.5 \phi}{1-\phi(\frac{m}{\phi}+b)} \qquad (")$$

and in final form:

Table 16 shows m is a function of the emulsifier concentration but data are insufficient to determine the form of the function. It can be seen in Figure 12 that the curves almost go through the origin. In Table 16, b can be seen to be very small and b ϕ therefore is much smaller. For all general purposes b ϕ may be taken as a constant because of its numerical size in comparison to the term (1 - m).

From Figures 13 and 14 it is seen that the suggested equation correlation is superior to the Mooney form and hence to the other suggested equations. The equation data agree in the overall sense. There is considerable scatter which perhaps could be reduced by further determinations. The agreement is best for materials comprising the continuous phase which are liquids at 77°F. The data obtained with octadecane vary considerably from the derived equation, and tend to follow a Mooney form. This can also be seen in Figures 13 and 14.

The new equation may be used in two forms, $ln \eta \epsilon/\eta_0 = \frac{2.5 \phi}{1 - m - 6 \phi}$ (12)

or if b 4 is considered insignificant

$$l_{m} \eta_{E/\eta_{0}} = \frac{2.5\phi}{1-m} = M\phi(13)$$

Figure 13 and 14 are in effect plots of equation (13) at two different emulsifier concentrations. This form seems most applicable since b is a small number for the emulsions studied. If $b \neq is$ not considered a constant (or negligible) then a log - log plot is necessary and the slope of the line will have the form:

$$M = \frac{A}{B + c \phi}$$

This equation suggests that the constant 2.5 may not always apply.

The emulsifier composition was not varied in this work. Experience suggests that the composition is very important. At least, the magnitudes of m, M, and b can be expected to change. The effects of other emulsifier types and the effects of mixed emulsifiers requires further study.





40

Ś

CONCLUSION

It was found that the apparent viscosity of the emulsion was dependent upon a number of factors:

- (1)The concentration of the disperse phase.
- The viscosity of the continuous phase. (2)
- (3)The crowding factor, which is dependent upon the emilgifier content.

It was established that the crowding factor was dependent upon the concentration of the disperse phase, An equation for S in terms of the disperse phase concentration was determined. This expression for S when substituted into the Mooney Equation resulted in a new equation without a crowding factor term. This new equation takes into account η_{ϵ} , η_{\circ} , ϕ , and one or two constants. The constants may be evaluated from a suitable plot of the data or via the crowding factor and the Mooney Equation. The equations for the apparent viscosity of a water in oil emulsion are:

$$lu \eta_{e/\eta_0} = \frac{2.5\phi}{1-m-6\phi}$$
 (12)

or since $b\phi$ is small $l_{M} \frac{\eta \varepsilon}{2} = \frac{2.5\phi}{1-m} = M\phi$ (13)

M is a function of emulsifier concentration and very likely also a function of emulsifier composition.

NOMENCLATURE

В	Hydrodynamic interaction constant, Vand Equation
C	Calibration constant for viscometer
h	Constant in the Hatscheck Equation
ĸı	Einstein shape factor, Vand Equation
<u>8</u> 2	Shape factor of collision doublets, Vand Equation
З	Mooney's crowding factor
Ţ	Efflux time for viscometer
~	Collision time constant, Vand Equation
¢	Volume fraction of disperse phase
Že	Apparent viscosity of the emulsion, centistokes
3.	Viscosity of the external phase, Centistokes
7:	Viscosity of the internal phase, centistokes
	B c h K1 S T 4 7 7 7

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- 1. Encyclopedia Brittanica, Lith Ed., Vol. 8, 416
- Clayton, W., "Theory of Emulsions", 4th Ed., The Blakiston Co., (1943)
- 3. Alexander, A., "Colloid Chemistry", D. Van Nostrand, (1924)
- L. Suthein, G. N., "Introduction to Emulsions", Chemical Publishing Co., (1946)
- 5. McBain, J. W., "Solubilization", p.xi New York, Academic Press, (1955)
- 6. Hatscheck, E., "Introduction to the Physics and Chemistry of Colloids", Philadelphia, Pa., Blakiston's Son and Co., (1926)
- 7. Roberts, G. M., <u>J Phys Chemistry</u>, Vol. 36, p. 3087, (1932)
- 8. Sherman, P., <u>Research</u>, London, Vol. 8, p. 396, (1950)
- 9. Hetscheck, E., Kolloid Z, Vol. 8, p. 34, (19)1)
- Taylor, G. I., Proc. Roy. Soc., London, A 138, p. 41, (1932)
- 11. Leviton, A., and Leighton, A., <u>J Phys Chemistry</u>, Vol. 40, p. 71, (1936)
- Oldroyd, J. W., Proc. Roy. Soc., London, A 218, p. 122, (1953)
- 13. Bond, W. N., and Newton, D. A., <u>Phil. Mag.</u>, Vol. 5, p. 794, (1928)
- 14. Toms, B. A., J. Chem. Soc., (1941), 542

- 15. Sherman, P., Mfg. Chemist, Vol. 26, p. 306, (1955)
- 16. Guth, E., Gold, M., and Shimha, R., <u>Kolleid Z</u>, Vol. 74, p. 266, (1936)
- 17. Oliver, D. R., and Ward, S. G., <u>Nature</u>, Vol. 171, p. 396, (1953)
- 18. Eilers, H., Kolloid Z. Vol. 97, p. 313, (1941)
- 19. Sherman, P., <u>Soc. Chem. Ind.</u>, London, 69 Suppl. 2, 570, (1950)
- 20. Richardson, E. G., J. Colloid Sci., Vol. 8, p. 367, (1953)
- 21. Simpson, G. K., J. 011 and Colour Chemists' Assos., Vol. 32, p. 60, (1949)
- 22. Carter, P., <u>American Perfumer and Cosmetics</u>, Vol. 77, P. 4, (1962)
- 23. Monson, Ind. Eng. Chem., Vol. 30, p. 11, (1938)
- 24. Mooney, J., J. Collaid Sci., Vol. 6, p. 162, (1951)
- 25. Vend, Phy. Colloid Chem., Vol. 52, p. 277, (1948)
- 26. "Emulsion Technology", A Symposium Chemical Publishing Co., pp. 326-327. (1946)
- 27. Swartz, A. M., and Perry, J. W., "Surface Active Agents", Interscience Fublishers, Inc., New York, pp. 15-17, (1949)
- 28. Helmholtz, H., <u>Weiu</u>, Ann., Vol. 7, p. 537, (1879)
- 29. Schmit, R., Ind. Eng. Chem., Vol. 56, p. 10, (1964)
- 30. Alexander, A. E., and Johnson, F., <u>Colloid Science</u>, London, pp. 43-48

31. Schulman, J. H., and E. G. Cockban, <u>Trans. Faraday Soc.</u>, Vol. 36, p. 661, (1940)

HEPTANE

Effect of Disperse Phase Concentration on λ_{ϵ}

(60 mls. heptane, 5 mls. GMO)

Water, % Vol.	<u>3</u> e
0	0.91
7.17	1.7
13.35	1.8
23,60	2.8
31.60	10.1
36.10	27.2
43.5	55.3
48.0	89.5

(60 mls.	heptane,	10 mls. G M O)
	0	1.1
	14.3	3.0
	22.2	
	30.0	42.0
	36.4	103
	41.7	220
	46.2	318

TAPLE 7

DECANE

Effect of Disperse Phase Concentration on γ_{ϵ} (60 mls. decane, 5 mls. G M 0) (60 mls. decane, 10 mls. G M 0)

Water, S Vol.	<u>25</u>	Water, % Vol.	<u>JE</u>
0	1.77	0	2.3
13.4	6.1	Ц. 3	6.1
23.6	7.5	18.3	12,0
31.6	16.0	22.2	30.1
38.1	33.8	30.0	89.7
43.5	70.5	36.4	206.0
48.0	130.0	42.7	344

TAPLE 8

DOTECANE

Effect of Disperse Phase Concentration on

(60 mls. dodecane, 5 mls. G M 0) (60 mls. dodecane, 10 mls. G M 0)

Water, % Vol.		Water, % Vol.	me_
0	2.34	0	3.1
13.4		24.3	8,5
23.6	12.0	22,2	38.0
31.6	2.3	20 . 0	130.2
38.1	55.5	36.4	296.6
43.5	108.1	4. 7. 7	674
48.0	196.5		

TETRADECANE

E	ffect of Dis	perse Phase	Concentration on	ME
(60 mls. tetr 5 mls. G	edecane, M O)	(60 mls. tet 10 mls.	radecane, G M O)
Wa	ter, 5 vol.	<u> </u>	Water, % vol.	<u> 7</u> =
	0	3.9	0	4.2
	13.4	8.7	24.3	10.8
	23.6	16.7	22.2	60.1
	31.6	42.1	30.0	210.0
- 1	38.1	87.2	26.4	474.2
	43.5	180.0	41.7	Too viscous
	48.0	431.3		

TABLE 10

HEXA DECANE

Effect of Dia	sperse Phase	Concentration on	he
(60 mls. hex. 5 mls. G	ad ecane, M O)	(60 mls. hexa 10 mls. G	decane, M 0)
Water, % vol.	<u></u>	Water, % vol.	<u>Je</u>
0	5.1	0	5.9
13.4	12.1	Щ.3	20.0
23.6	45.1	22.2	94.1
31.6	107.5	26.1	160.0
38.1	355.5	30.0	298.0
· · · ·		33.2	520

OCTADECAME

	Effect of Dis	perse Phase	Concentration on	<i><i>7E</i></i>
·	(60 mls. octa 5 mls. G	decane, M O)	(60 mls. octa 10 mls. G	decane, M 0)
	Water, % vol.	<u>_7e</u>	Water, % vol.	<u> 3</u> E
	0	5.8	0	7.25
	13.4	18.	14.3	35.0
	18.5	41.0	18.3	90.5
	23.6	76.0	22.2	148.0
	31.6	202.0	26.1	250
	38.1	1130	30,0	460

HYDROCARBON AND EMULSION DATA

	VISCOSITY							
	Mol. Wt.	Density	Hydrocarbon*	<u> </u>	<u> 76 ***</u>		<u> </u>	
				<u>A</u>	<u>_B</u>	<u>A</u>	B	
Heptane	100.20	0.6828	0,56	27.2	103	0,91	1.10	
Decane	N12.28	0.7301	1.18	33.8	206	1.77	2.30	
Dodecane	170.33	0.7470	1.81	55.5	297	2.34	3.10	
Tetradecane	198.38	0.7650	2.64	87.2	474	3.90	4.20	
Hexadecane	226.44	0.7751	3.85	356		5.10	5.90	
Octadocane	254.49	0.7768	5.40	1130		5.80	7.25	

(³/_{j/2}) A 60 ml. hydrocarbon, 40 ml. water, 5 ml. G M O
(³/_j) B 60 ml. hydrocarbon, 40 ml. water, 10 ml. G M O
Density at 20/4° C
* Centistokes at 80° F
** Centistokes at 77° F except octadecane viscosity

which was at 90° F

	EMULSIFIER, VIS	R, VISCOSITY DATA		
HYEROCARBON CC	GMO CC	WA TER CC	VISCOSITY centistokes	
Heptane				
60	5.0	40	27.2	
60	7.5	140	50.0	
60	10	40	103.1	
Decane				
60	1.0	40	20.0	
60	3.3	40	24.0	
60	5.0	140	33.8	
60	10	40	206.0	
Dodecane				
60	3.0	4.0	26.1	
60	5.0	40	55.5	
60	10	40	296.6	
Tetradecane				
60	3.0	40	30.0	
60	5.0	40	87.2	
60	10	40	474.2	
Hexadecane				
60	0.7	40	28.0	
60	2.0	40	100.0	
60	5.0	40	355.5	

60	0.5	40	40.0
60	2.0	<u></u> цо	208.0
60	2,5	40	553.0
60	5.0	4 0	1130

HYDROCARBON VISCOSITY DATA

		76/2		
WATER, CC.	10	20 20	30	210
HEPTANE	1.98/1	3.08/1	11.1/1	29.9/1
DECANE	2.45/1	4.23/1	9.6/1	19.8/1
DODECANE	3.16/1	5.12/1	10.4/1	23.7/1
TETRA DECANE	2.23/1	4.28/1	10.8/1	26.4/1
HE XADECANE	2.37/1	8.90/1	21.2/1	70.2/1
OCTADECANE	3.12/1	13.1/1	34.8/1	195/1
These emulsi	ons contat	ined 60 ml. 1	nydrocarbon,	5 ml. emulsi-
fier, and wa	tor.			

TABLE 15

HYDROCARBON VISCOSITY DATA

	-			
HEP TANE	2.73/1	7.35/1	38,2/1	93.7/1
DECANE	2.67/1	13.1/1	38.9/1	89.6/1
ID DECANE	2.74/1	12.2/1	42.1/1	95.7/1
TETRADECANE	2.57/1	14.3/1	50.0/1	113/1
HE XA DECANE	3.31/1	15.5/1	49.3/1	
OCTADECANE	4.83/1	20.4/1	63.4/1	
These emilat	ons conta	lned 60 ml. b	vdrocarbon.	10 ml. emu

These emulsions contained 60 ml. hydrocarbon, 10 ml. emulsifier, and water.

TABLE	16
-------	----

,

S-VALUES

φ	C7	C1 0	C 1 2	сл†	C16	C18	
.0715	10	**		-	-	. 	
.1335	3.8	4.7	5.4	4.4	4.6	5.3	
.188		iere	وفلو	tage.	-	4.0	
•236	2.0	2.5	2.7	2.5	3.1	3+3	
.316	2.1	2.0	2.2	2.1	2.3	2.6	
• 339		**	10	-	**	2.3	
.387	1.9	1.8	1,8	1,8	2.0	2.1	
.435	1.7	1.6	1.7	1.6	۰. ۲۰	**	
.480	1.5	1.5	1,6	1.6	*** *		
TABLE 3	-7						
.125	5.5	5.4	5.5	5.4	6.3	6.4	
.178	*	497	-	*	¥ 1 0-	4.6	
,222	3.3	3.5	3.5	3.6	3.6	3.7	
.263			*	-	-	3.1	
• 300	2.6	2.6	2.7	2.7	2.6	2.7	
• 333	**	***	ings		2.4	**	
• 364	2.2	2.2	2,2	2.2	**	*	
•417	1.9	1.9	1.9			**	
.461	1.7	٠	1.7	-	**	**	
Table 1	6 Blends	cont'd.	60 ml.	hydrocarl	b on, 40 r	nl. water	' 9
& 5 ml.	GMO						
Table 17 Blends contained 60 ml. hydrocarbon, 40 ml. water, & 10 ml. G M O